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1 Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

A: Acronyms and Abbreviations

AFRAC African Accreditation Cooperation

CAB Conformity Assessment Body

CASCO ConformityAssessmentStandardsCommittee

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CORSIA Carbon Offsetting and Reduction Scheme for lnternational Aviation

EASA European Union Aviation Safety Agency

EAAB East Africa Accreditation Board

IAF lnternational Accreditation Forum

ICPAK lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

ILAC lnternational Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation

IPSAS lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards

ISO lnternational Organization for Standardization

KENAS Kenya Accreditation Service

PFM Public Finance Managemenl

PPE Property Plant & Equipment

WTO World Trade Organization

B: Glossary of Terms

Accreditation is a third-party attestation related to a conformity assessment body

conveying a formal demonstration of its competence to perform specific conformity
assessmenl tasks.

Assessment is the process undertaken by an accreditation body to determine the
competence of a conformity assessment body based on standard(s) and/or other
normative documents for a defined scope of accreditation.

Asgegsor is person assigned by KENAS to perform, alone or as part of an

assessment team, an assessment of a conformity assessment body.

Conformity assessment activity is activity undertaken or service provided by a
conformity assessment body when evaluating conformity of a product or service, which
include, but are not limited to, testing, calibration, inspection, certification of
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management systems, persons, products, pr.ocesses and services, provision of
proficiency testing, production of reference materials, validation and verification.

conformity Assessment Body is a body that carries out conformity assessment
services, including calibration, certification, testing, inspection, medical testing,
proficiency testing and production of reference materials and verification.

Fiduciary Management is members of Management are direcfly entrusted with the
responsibility of financial resources of the organisation.

Team Leader is an assessor who is given the overall responsibility for the management
of an assessment
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Dr. Leah Chelagat
MCAP, BTh
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lndependent Director (born 1967)
Appointed 2?d June 2023
Dr. Leah Chelagat holds a Masters' Degree Counselling
& Psychology from BIBU lnternational University, a BA
Theological Studies from BIBU lnternational University
and a Certificate in lnternational Mediation from Mediate
University. She is the Managing Director & Founder 1

Pome Granite lnternational Ltd.

Leah's areas of expertise include Strategic Planning,
Financial Analysis, Business Acumen, prolect
Management, Risk Management and Team Building
with over 20 years' experience as a multiple start up
lnvestor.

Leah was appointed as an independent Director in June
2023. She is the chair of the Technical and Strategy
Committee and a member of the Finance and
lnvestment Committee.

4

Mr. Zedekiah Orioki
BAEcon, Dip

lndependent Director (born 1962)
Appointed 27d June 2023
Zedekiah Orioki holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree
(Economics) and Diploma in Purchasing and Supplies.
He has over thirty (30) years' experience in public and
commercial purchasing, slore management and Supply
Chain Management.

He previously served in diverse roles such as Chief
Officer, Supply Chain department at the Geothermal
Development Company-(GDC), Senior purchasing

Officer, Kenya Medical Research lnstitute- KEMRI,
Stores Manager at DT Dobie Motors and Store manager
at CMC Motors Group K. Limited. He brings a diverse
skill set in supply chain processes, systems and
compliance requirements.
Zedekiah was appointed as an independent Director in
June 2023. He is the chair of the Finance and
lnvestment Committee and a member of the Human
Resource and Administration committee.
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5 lndependent Director (born 1972)
Appointad 2?d June 2023
Waiganjo Dickson Macharia has a Bachelor of Law
(LLB) degree from the University of South Gujarat and
a Diploma of Law from the Kenya School of Law. He
was admitted to the roll of Advocates on 4th October
1999

He is the Managing partner at Macharia Waiganjo and
Nyakoe Advocates where he specializes in

conveyancing, civil and commercial matters. He has
over 23 years' experience in Legal, regulatory and
Compliance matters which are essential in shaping
good governance.

Waiganjo was appointed as an independent Director in

June 2023. He is the chair of the Audit and Risk
Committee and a member of the Human Resource and
Administration Committee.

Mr. Waiganjo Dickson Macharia
LLB, PGD, Advocate of the high

court of Kenya

6

Ms. Stella Osoro,
MA, BA, CPA(K)

Alternate to the Principal Secretary, The National
Treasury (bom 1984)
Appointed 17h November 2015
Stella Osoro has a Master of Arts in Economics and a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University of
Nairobi. She is a Certified Public Accountant of Kenya
(CPA-K). She Currently works at the National Treasury
and Planning as a Principal Economist.
Stella was appointed alternate to the CS, National
Treasury and Economic Planning in the year 201 5. She
is an experienced Public Sector Economist and
Accountant.
She is a member of the Audit Risk and Assurance and
Finance and lnvestment Committees of the Board.
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7

Ms. Ruth Wanyonyi
MScFin, BFin, CPA (K)

Allemate to the Princlpal Secretary, State
Departnent of lndustry (bom 1982)
Appointed 1* January 2023
Ruth Wanyonyi is a holder of a Master of Science
Degree in Finance from JKUAT, Bachelor of Commerce

in Finance from KCA University and is a Certified Public
Accountant (K) with membership at ICPAK. She serves
as the Ag. Head of Accounting Unit at the State
Department for lndustry. She joined the department in
June 2018 having previously worked at various

Ministries Departments Agencies.
Ruth was appointed as an alternate to the Principal

Secretary, State Department for lndustry in January
2023. She is a member of the Audit and Risk and
Finance and Administration Committees of the Board.

I

r. Hozbon K'ogollah
MBA, BscFood, PGD

lndependent Director (born 1982)
Exited on 1* June 2023
Hezbon K'ogollah holds a Masters of Business
Administration (Operations Management) from

University of Nairobi, a Bachelor of Science in Food

Science & Technology (Hons) from University of Nairobi

and a Post Graduate Diploma in Military Science from

Egerton University. He has over fifteen (15) years'

experience in the public and commercial manufacturing
sector, end to end operations and Supply Chain
Management.
He was an independent director and served as Chair of
the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee and member
of the Finance lnvestment Committee.

I

r. Slmon Salning'u
MBA, BscFin

lndependent Director (bom 1969)
Exlted on 1* June 2023
Simon Saining'u holds an MBA in Finance from USIU
and a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and
Statistics. He is a Finance and Mathematics expert with
over 30 years' experience in the public secior.
He has certifications in lnstitutional Re-Engineering and
Change Management and Strategic Planning &

Management from the Kenya School of Govemment,
Senior Management Development Programme, ESAMI
from Egerton University, Customer Relationship
Management from Kenya Revenue Authority, Project

Management Excellence from Deloitte, Business
Performance lmprovement from KPMG Training

x
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Solutions and Performance Management from lnstitute
of Personnel Management.
He was an independent director and served as Chair of
the Finance lnvestment Commiftee and member of the
Technical and Strategy Committee

10

irlc, Evrh Adcga Oduor
MBA, MSc, BSc, QI

I Chalrperson (bom 1957)
Exited on 2@ Apdl 2023
Evah Adega Oduor holds an MSc in Biochemistry, a
Master's in Business and Administration and a BSc in
Biochemistry from the Unive6ity of Nairobi. Evah is a
Standards and Quality lnfraslructure Expert with 20
years' experience cunently working with Physicalische
Technishe Bundeseinstalt (PTB) as a Quality
lnfrastructur€ Expert on a project dealing with Up
grading of Quality lnfrastruclure in Africa for the
Organisational development of Atrica Standardization
Electrotechnical Commission (AFSEC).

Evah is an lndependent ConsultanU Oirec{or IEC Africa
Regional C6ntre, Nairobi, Kenya. She has immensely
contributed to Standards Dev€lopment, lntemational
Trade and Qualig Assurance Training in
Standardisation and Conformity Assessment. She was
appointed as the Chairperson of the KEl,lAS Board in
October 2021

1',|

Dr. Nancy N. Uuduki,
PhD, MBA, BCom. Dip., CPS(K)

tndapendant Dlrector (bom 1963)
Retlrcd on l* tlarch 2023
Nancy Muriuki holds a PhD in Organisational
Leadership from Regent University USA, an MBA from
the University of Nalrobi, a Certified Secretary (CS) from
KASNEB, a Bachelor of Commerce (Business
Administration) from the University of Nairobi and a
Diploma in Management from the Kenya lnstitute of
Management. She is a member of the lnstitute of
Human Resources Management of Kenya (IHRM-K)
and lnstitute of Certified Secretaries (lCS) and is an
adjunct lecturer at the Pan Africa Christian University
(PAC) in Nairobi.
Nancy's areas of expertise include Govemance and
Leadership, Human Resource ManagemenU
Development, and Corporate Secretarial Practice and
has over 32 years of experience.
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She was an independent Director and served as Chair

of the Audit & Risk Assurance and Finance &

lnvestment Committees

12

Mr. Danson il. Ngaari,
MBA, BSc. Global Health,
PGDipCDTech.

lndependent Director (bom 1962)

Exited on * July 2023
Danson M. Ngaari has a Master's of Business and

Administration (lnternational Business) from the open

University of Malaysia, Bachelor of Global

Contemporary Health from the University of
Hertfordshire U.K), Postgraduate Diploma in Dental

Technology from the Kenya Medical Training lnstitute

and Pre-Clinical Studies from the University of Nairobi.

He has over 20 years of experience in management,
institutional leadership, and Governance.

Danson is a member of the Kenya Dental Technologist
Association and various community Associations. He is

an independent Director at KENAS, is the current Chair

of the Finance & lnvestment Committee and the

immediate past Chair of the Human Resource &
Administration Committee

13

tlr. Alex Gatundu,
LLM, Dip.LLB

I
t'

lndependent Dlrector (bom 1972)
Retired on 13b January 2023
Alex Gatundu has a Bachelor of Law (LLB) degree from

the University of Nairobi and a Diploma of Law from the
Kenya School of Law. He was admitted to the roll of
Advocates in December 1998, and he specialises in

Civil and Commercial law practice. He has 22 years'

experience in Law practice, and he is the Managing

Partner of Gatundu & Co Advocates. He is a Certified
Retirement Benefits Trustee and has held several
leadership positions at the African Bar Association
(Kenya Forum) and the Law Society of Kenya.

Alex was appointed as an independent Director in

January 2Q20. He was the Chair of the Technical &

Strategy Committee and member of the Technical and

Strategy Committee
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Mr. Duncan Nyale
Msc.lT, BSc. lT, Dip.lT

lndependent Director (born 1981)
Retired on 13th January 2023
Duncan Nyale holds a MSc in lnformation Systems from
Kisii University, a Bsc in lnformation Technology and a
Diploma in lnformation Technology from the Jomo
Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology. He

is a seasoned Technical, Public Policy and
Administration advisor with over 1 5 years' experience in

Corporate Governance, lnformation and
Communication Technologies (lCT) and Education.

Duncan is a Lecturer and a former Ag. Director of the
Directorate of Computing and e-Learning at the
Cooperative University of Kenya. He was appointed as
an independent Director in January 2020.

He was the Chair of the Human Resource &
Administration Committee and member of the Technical
& Strategy Committee.

15

Ms. Patricia Aruwa,
MA-Dev, BSc.

Alternate to the Principal Secrctary, Stare
Depaflment of lndustry (born 1969)
Replaced on llh January 2023
Patricia Aruwa holds a Master's Degree in Development
Studies from the University of Nairobi and a Bachelor's
Degree in Agriculture and Home Economics from
Egerton University. She has also undertaken various
training courses including Project Planning,
Environmental Governance, Leadership and
Management.

Patricia has 29 years in Public Service, 10 years of
these having been in monitoring and evaluation. She
currently serves in the Business Environment and
Private Seclor Development Directorate of the State
Department for lndustrialization. She is the Alternate to
the PS State Department for lndustrializalion since
November 2021.

She was a member of the Finance & lnvestment,
Human Resources & Administration and Technical &

Strategy Committees of the Board
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Mr, Martln Cheslre
MBA, MSc. BSc
MloD(K)

coP(uK),

Chlef Executlve Olficer (bom 1973)
Reappointad on 1* March 2021

Mr. Martin Chesire is a quality infrastructure
professional with over twenty years working with

national, regional and international organizations and

development partners.

He has a Master of Science in Quality Management and

Business Excellence from the University of Stirling
(Scotland) and Executive Master of Business
Administration in lntemational Management from the
Universit6 de Gendve (SwiEerland). He is a graduate of
Moi University (Kenya) with a Bachelor of Science in

Chemistry.

Mr. Chesire worked at the lntemational Organization for
Standardization (lSO) in Geneva (Switzerland) and prior

to that at the Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS). He is

a Chartered Quality Professional (U.K.) and a member
of the lnstitute of Direclors of Kenya (loDK).
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4 KeyManagementTeam

ilarlin Chesire
Chief Executive Officer

EMBA, MSc. BSc., CaP(UK), MloD(K)

Susanah Munyiri-Ochleng
Chief Manager, Certification, lnspection and

Verification
MBA, BSc., Dip. Ql, MloD(K)

Lucy Nancy Muthoni Namu
Chief Manager, Laboratories
MSc, BSc. PGDSc. PGDA

John buru Kamau

Chief Manager, Corporate Services
MBA, BCom., CPA(K), CPS(K)

t

Elijah Kandie
Manager, lnternal Audit
BBM, CPA(K), MilA(K)

,

t

I
. t.i

xv



Kany! Accrudltstlon Sorvlce (KENAS)
Annull Report rnd Flnanclal Statcment!
for th. y.ar .nded June 30, 2023.

Joycc Wangul Glchuru
Manager, Scheme Development, Training

and Advocacy
iIAlR, B.Sc. (Agriculture)

,
("

I

Henry exwcll W.nd.bwa
Manager, Finance and Accounts

MBA, BCom., CPA(K)

Flormlne f,usce Nglna
Manager, Supply Chain Management

MBA, BBA, MCIPS (UK), MKISM

Waltor t.nylbe Ny.mw.y.
Principal Legal Officer

LLB, PGDI, CS

Francls Otalo
Ag. Corporation Secretary

LLB, CPS
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5 Chairperson's Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Kenya Accreditation Service (KENAS), I present

the 13th Annual Report and Financial Statement for the Financial Year 202212023.

KENAS plays a key role in the national, regional and international arena working with
partners to strengthen the quality infrastructure through accreditation. ln the peribd under
review, KENAS participated in regional and international engagements organized and
hosted by quality and standards organizations such as ILAC, lAF, AFRAC, EAAB, lSO,

and the WTO. KENAS also hosted members of the EAAB and the EAC Secretariat with
the aim of deepening accreditation in the East African region to facilit'ate trade and quality

services to citizens.

The Service was able to conduct and accomplish its mandate in providing accreditation
and training of CABs in line with set standards. The Kenya Accreditation Service Act 2019
mandates KENAS to participate in the formulation and monitoring of national, regional
and international accreditation guidelines and standards to ensure that global trade
facilitation is enhanced for Kenya.

The Board, in its continued efforts to attain financial sustainability, steered KENAS to an

improved financial position. The Board also approved policies aimed at building

stakeholder and customer confidence in KENAS products and services. These policies

were aimed at ensuring prudent financial management, and safeguarding the long-term
financial sustainability of the service.

To enhance institutional capacity in service delivery in line with the strategic plan, the
Board approved a recruitment plan for additional staff. Further, it directed the
implementation of the staff training plan and granted for office relocation to expand the
available facilities and work stations for the staff.

Further, in its effort to mitigate the risk of misuse and false claims of accreditation and
enhance protection of its intellectual proper$ rights, the Board approved a rebranding
project to reposition KENAS in the quality infrastructure arena.

ln the year under review, KENAS went through effects of global economic decline which
impacted attainment of its planned goals. These include; slow uptake of accreditation
services and the delayed appointments of board members that affected KENAS ability to
provide timely strategic direction.

For the financial year 202312024, lhe Board will prioritize monitoring the advancement of
the EAPK-Project's implementation and realignment of the KENAS strategic plan toward
ensuring financial stability and sustainability.

xvll



Fi
c

T

Accrrdlt tlon Srrlcc (KENAS)
url R.port rnd Flnanchl Strt mcntt
lh. r .nd.d Jun. !0, 202t,

ally, I would like to thank the KENAS Board both cunent and ouQoing, the Commifte
irs and and Management for their dedication and commitnent which led to KEt'lAS

good progress. I also wish to extend my gratitude to the Ministry of lnvestnents'
de and lndustry for close collaboration and guidance to the Board and KENAS where

BIWOTT
lrpcnon of thl Boerd

\z- Ln2-

rvlll



Kenya Accr.dltatlon Seryice (KENAS)
Annual Report and Flnanclal Statomentg
for tho yoar ondod June 30, 2023.

6 Report of the Chief Executive Officer

I am pleased to report another successful year for KENAS, despite the slowdown in

delivery during the first quarter occasioned by the extended electioneering period. ln the
year ended 30th June 2023, we recorded an 11Vo growth in Appropriation in Aid, and we
received the second-highest number of applications in a single year since our
establishment. Because of this, we recruited several staff members and qualified

additional assessors to match the demand and maintain good service delivery. ln sum,

our financial performance was aligned with our expectations, and our expenditures were
within the budget larget, marking the return to positive financial results.

Strateqic Focus

The Financial Year (FY) 202212023 marked the third year in implementing our Strategic
Plan2020-2024, which comprises six (6) strategic pillars, and during the second quarter,

we undertook the mid-term evaluation to facilitate alignment of our Strategic Plan 2020-
2024 Government's Bottom-up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA) and the Fourth
Medium Term Plan2023-2028 of Kenya's Vision 2030. The overall achievement was 67%
against the Strategic Plan two and haff years of implementation. To this end, I am pleased

to highlight the initiatives and achievements for the third year of the Strategic Plan 2O2O-

2024 implementation as presented in this 13th Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Financial Year 30th June 2023.

At the outset of FY 202212023, we continued strengthening our service delivery by
formulating four (4) client-focused policies essential to enhance the transparency of our
fees and charging practices, namely, estimation of person-days for assessment, group

and multi-site accreditation, application for flexible scope accreditation, and travel and

accommodation policies. As a result, in October 2022, we transferred the responsibility
for arrangements for travel and accommodation to be undertaken by Clients directly.
These policies enabled KENAS to free up its liquidity of approximately 27 Million (FY

202112022), reduce the credit control efforts and set the stage for reviewing lhe 2012
pricing model to be implemented in the coming FY 202312024.

Reqional and lnternational Gommitments

KENAS actively strengthened its position in international and regional accreditation
engagement with lAF, lLAC, and AFRAC. As a resull, in the FY 202212023, KENAS
attained an impressive 97o/o parlicipation score overall, reflecting our valuable
contributions to influencing accreditation policies and standards. ln addition, we continued
to live our commitment to being a "Standards First" accreditation body by participating in
formulating international standards and guidelines on conformity assessment and
accreditation within the ISO Committee on Conformity Assessment (CASCO) and the
maintaining a consistent presenoe and influence atthe World Trade Organization (WTO)
Technical Barrier to Trade Committee fl-BT).

xtx
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Overall, notably, several KENAS Staff hold several leadership roles, namely, AFRAC

Vice-Chair Mutual Recognition Arrangements Committee (MRA), AFRAC Vice Chair
Technical Committee and AFRAC Chair Marketing Communications Committee, AFRAC
Evaluator Working Group, and ISO/CASCO WG 57 Convenor Mentee among others.

Furthermore, KENAS provided AFRAC and Arab Accreditation Cooperation (ARAC) with

Peer Evaluators for several Evaluations undertaken.

\Mthin the East Africa Community (EAC), during the year, KENAS, through the support

of partners, hosted the 6th East Africa Accreditation Board meeting in Nairobi, attended

by Accreditation bodies and National Accreditation Focal Points from five (5) partner

States.

lnstitutional Capacity developments

During FY 202012021, KENAS formulated a three-year human resource plan consistent
with the Strategic Plan 2020-2024 with the objective of enhancing institutional capacity
and governance. ln the year under review, KENAS continued implementing the Human
Resource lnstruments Policy lnstrument of 201 9, recruited and onboarded nineteen (19)

new Staff to strengthen the workforce, and promoted others. Besides, all KENAS
management level Staff were trained at the Kenya School of Government, with two (2)

attending the Strategic Leadership Development Programmes (SLDP), seventeen (17) in
Senior Management Courses (SMC), and four (4) Supervisory Courses concluding the
institutional pending skills gaps earlier identified in FY 202012021 .

Furthermore, given the increase in the KENAS workforce and the opportunity provided

by the lease expiry at the previous Office location (Embankment Plaza), KENAS relocated
to a new Office location on Masaba Road. Through the Office lmprovement and
Remodelling Project (OlR Project), KENAS successfully moved to its new location on

ZSlhDecember 2022.

The new offices allowed a purposeful design of a modern work environment. As such,
KENAS introduced significant improvements that allowed for major transformation,
facilitated employee culture change and reduced power distance. The new Office now
features a complete dynamic open-space design for all Staff to comply with existing Public
Service guidelines, customer-friendly consultation areas outside workstations to increase
confidentiality, the coJocating of Staff in teams within close distance with supervisors to
increase communication, a training centre with more meeting rooms to encourage and
empower Staff to innovate, ideate, and debate issues eliminating bureaucracy but a
potential revenue stream through hire out of meeting room space, and finally locating the
Boardroom appropriately to guarantee effective arm's length distance between
Management and Board.

Further, to address the emerging issue of misuse of KENAS logo and marks, we initiated
a rebranding project that informed the development of a new logo, accreditation symbols,
and brand identity. The rebranding is an effort to not only position KENAS but also
mitigate the risk of misuse and false claims of accreditation and enhance the protection

xx
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of its intellectual property rights. The new brand identity features a new logo, a new mark
design in new colours, and brand identity user guidelines.

Ooerational and Financial oer{ormance

Under the accreditation and assessments, KENAS successfully processed seventy-three
(73) applications for new accreditation and extension of scope, undertook one hundred
and ninety-three (193) assessments, and accredited twenty-three (23) new CABs. As a
result, the total number of accreditations was two hundred and sixty (260) at the end of
June 2023. ln addition, a few initiatives were directed at expansion efforts and its goal to
enhance regional accreditation. As a result, KENAS accrediled its first clients in Somalia
and South Sudan, bringing the coverage to nine (9) African countries; the existing ones
are Ghana (3), Rwanda (4), Tanzania (19), The Gambia (1), Sudan (1), and Uganda (',l0).

Sadly, we withdrew twelve (12) accredited bodies in Kenya for various reasons, including
failure to meet their financial obligations.

Under training and capacity building, KENAS conducted thirty (30) training programmes

targeting individuals and groups, covering generic requirements in the normative

conformity assessment standards and their application. These training programmes aim
to enhance capabilities within the quality infrastructure, including raising awareness of
the revised ISO 15189:2022 standard.

ln the financial year 202212023, KENAS experienced notable revenue growth, with its
AppropriationsJn-Aid (A-in A) increasing by 11o/o from KES 106 million in the previous

financial year to KES 117 million. Thus, it contributed to an overall growth in revenues
from Kshs. 251.4 million to Kshs. 367.3 million, an increase ol 460/o.

Looking ahead at the coming year FY 202312024, our key priority will be the
implementation of the Enhancement of Accreditation Project in Kenya (EAPK) and the
alignment of the KENAS Strategic Plan to ensure KENAS attains financial stability and in
line with its sustainability pathway.

Lastly, I sincerely thank the Board of Directors and our parent Ministry for their leadership,
counsel, and support throughout the year. Also, I thank most sincerely all our clients and
stakeholders who have continued to support us and provided immense feedback and
ideas on our level of service. Finally, thanks to the Management team and Staff for their
dedication to the KENAS mission.

I look forward to advancing another year towards our vision to be "a symbol of trust in
quality, safety and environmental assurance".

4)N, '--'
/<. fi|

llartin lro
CHlEF EXECUT]VE OFFICER
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7 Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives for FY

2022t2023

KENAS has six (6) strategic pillars and objectives within the current Strategic Plan for the
FY 202012021 lo FY 202412025. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar 1:

Pilter2,.
Pillar 3:

Pillar 4:
Pillar 5:

Pillar 6:

Accreditation and Assessments;
Knowledge Transfer and Advisory;
Marketing Communication and Advocacy;
Financial Sustainability;
lnternal Business Processes: and
I nstitutional Capacity and Governance.

KENAS developed its annual work plan based on the six (6) strategic pillars listed above.
Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan was done on a
quarterly basis. KENAS achieved its performancetargets setfortheFY 202212023 period

for its six (6) strategic pillars, as indicated in the table 5.

Teble 3: Pe ormance tgalnst predeta,?f,lned obtectlvas

Accredit forty-five
(45) new CABS

The Service accredited twenty-
three (23) new CABs. The
variance is attributed to delays
in the closure of non-
conformities, postponement of
client assessments, and
unavailability of assessors.

Number of new
CABs
accredited

Assess 305 CABs The Service assessed one
hundred and ninety-three (193)
CABS this was due to the
unavailability of assessors and
the rescheduling ot
assessments by clients.

Number
CABs
assessed

of

Pillar 1

Accreditation
and
Assessments

Review
applications
both
applicants
extension
scopes

64
lor

new
and

of

KENAS reviewed seventy-three
(73) applications hom new
applicants and extension ot
scopes.

Deliver value
added
assessments
and
accreditation
services

New and
extension of
scope
applications
reviewed

KENAS delivered thirty (30)
training sessions. Variance was
due to low registration that led
to rescheduling or
cancellations.

Training
pro9rammes
delivered

Deliver forty-five
(45) training
programmes

Pillar 2:
Knowledge
Transfer and
Advisory

andldentify
qualify
assessment
personnel

Trained thirty-eight (38) team
leaders and twenty-nine (29)
assessors resulting in 100%
achievement.

Strengthen
accred itation
assessment
resource
capabilities

ofo/o

assessment
personnel
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identified and
qualified

Pillar 3:
Marketing,
Communication
and Advocacy

Enhance
KENAS
brand
visibility

Advocacy and
Awareness
programmes
organized

Organize
advocacy and
awareness
programmes

KENAS hosted key events,
participated in CSR aclivities
and commemorated partner
events.

Secure Kshs. 109
million fror Project
Funding

KENAS was allocated Kshs.
100 million in lhe FY 202312024
development budget

Raise Kshs
million
Appropriation
Aid

120
as
in

KENAS raised a total of Kshs.
117 (98%). The variance was
due to deferment of assessment
and training activities.

Pillar 4
Financial
Sustainability

To enhance
the Service's
financial
ability to
meet its
mandate

lncreased
tunds

Cooperate with
Development
partners to fund
key projects

KENAS cooperated
received support from
and EASA- CORSIA

and
KCAA

Minimise
tumaround
time for
services

Reduced
tumaround time
for key services

Reduce the
duration for
accreditation to
three (3) months

The Service improved its tum-
around time for accreditation
services from 5 months to 4
months 3 weeks

Pillar 5: lntemal
Business
Processes

lmprove
service
delivery

Automation
index

lncreased
Automation lndex
(Fargel71.7o/o)

An automation survey was
conducted resulting in an
automation index ol 72.5o/o.

%
implementation
of recruifnent
plan

lmplement
recruitrnent plan

Recruited nineteen (19) staff

Level of
Strategic Plan
implementation

Monitor and
evaluate
implementation o,
the Strategic Plan

KENAS has been consistently
monitoring the implementation
of its Strategic Plan for the
period 2020 to 2024, and the
cunent progress stands at 670lo
completion.

EA.AB
Operational
plan

Collaborate and
support EAC
Secretariat to
plan and fund
operationalization
of EA-AB

Ouring the meeting hosted by
KENAS for the EA-AB, an
operational plan was formulated
and officially adopted.

Pillar 6:
lnsftutional
Capacity and
Govemance

Strengthen
lnstitutional
Capacity and
Govemance

o/o of Board
Members
trained

Train and build
capacity of 100%
Board Members

100olo Board members kained
on Mwongozo code of
Govemance
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8 Corporate Governance Statement

The KENAS Board is accountable to the Kenyan Government through the Ministry of
lnvestments, Trade and lndustry, ensuring legal compliance, governance standards, and

alignment with lhe Mwongozo Code of Conduct and the Kenya Accreditation Service Act
2019, Section 7.

Board composition

As summarised in lable 6, nine (9) persons served as Directors at different times, all of
whom, except for the CEO and two alternates to the Principal Secretaries, are

independent non-executive Directors.

Tfile 1: Board Composftlon

Chairperson 1d term
E

1 Mr. ngeny BIWOTT 25rh April 2023

@ffik{sil

1{ term15fr June 2023 Member, lndependent2 Ms. Grace Otieno

Member, lndependent 1n term3 Dr. Leah Chelagat 22N June 2023

22N June 2023 Member, lndependent 1n term4 Mr. Zedekiah Orioki

1d term5 Mr. Dickson Waiganjo 22nd June 2023 Member, lndependent

Continuous termMs. Ruth Wanyonyi 19rh January 2023 Director, Alternate to PS
State Department for
lndustry Replaced

b

Ms. Patricia Aruwa 'ln November 2021

Continuous Term7 Ms. Slella Osoro 'l7s November 2021 Director, Alternate to CS
The National Treasury and
Economic Planning

Ex-otficio member, Chief
Executive Officer

ReappointedI Mr. Martin Chesire 1gth March 2021

Member, lndependent Replaced9 Mr Simon Sainingu Sth August 2022

10 Mr Hezbon K'ogollah 13th July 2022 Member, lndependent Replaced

Replaced'11 Ms Evah A. Oduor 8h October 2021 Chairperson

Member, lndependent Replaced12 Dr. Nancy N. Muriuki 17n March 2020

Retired13 Mr. Alex Gatundu 13rh January 2020 Member, lndependent

14 Mr. Duncan Nyale 13th January 2020 Member, lndependent Retired

Replaced15 Mr Danson M. Ngaari 14rh November 2019 Member, lndependent
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Borrd Committeec

Finance and lnvestment; Audit and Risk Assurance; Human Resource and
Administration; and Technical and Strategy Committees of the Board were maintained to
aid in efficient discharge of duties and oversight obligations.

Boerd mee0ng at'bndance

As required by lhe Mwongozo Code of Governance, the Board dedicated adequate time
to discharge its duty in leading KENAS effectively by holding five (5) tull board meetings.

Towards the end of the year under review could not convene one (1) meeting due to lack
of quorum as a result of the vacancies as presented in table 7.

f.He 6: Boatd m.etlag att ndance aummery

Mr. ngeny BIWOTT

3

Mr. Oickson Waiganjo 0 0 Appointed on 22d June 20230

0 0 Appointed on 22d June 2023Mr- Zedekiah Orioki 0

Appointed in 22 June 2023Or. Leah Chelagat 0 0 0

0 Appointed in 15m June 2023Mr. Grace Otieno 0 0

Appointed on 26t April 2023, board
composition not sufficient to hold the
meeting.

0 00

Ms. Ruth Wanyonyi 2

I

12 00 Attended all, appointed in January
2023

6 100 Attend6d allMs. Stella Osoro 6

4 100 Replaced on 25s April 2023Ms. Evah Adega Oduor 4

100 Replaced on 14s Jun6 2023Mr. Simon Saining'u 4 4

100 Replac€d on 14m Jun6 2023Mr. Hezbon K'ogollah 4 4

Dr. Nancy N. Muriuki 75 Retred on 16rh March 20234 3

100 Replaced on 5b July 2022Mr. Danson Ngaari 1 1

Mr. Alex Gatundu Retired on 13m January 2023100

Mr. Duncan Nyale

3

3

l3

3 Retired on 13rh January 2023100

Replaced on 18h January 2023Patricia Aruwa 3
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Roles and responsibilities of directons

The roles and responsibilities of the KENAS Board are as set under the Kenya
Accreditation Service Act, 2019, Chapter 1 , Paragraph '1.2 of the Code of Governance for
State Corporations, Mwongozo, and the Board Charter.

Conflict of interest

Board members prevent conflicts of interest, uphold public trust, follow ethical statutes,
and excuse themselves as perthe Code of Conduct and Ethics.

Succesgion Planning

Succession planning was guided by the Code of Governance for State Corporations,
Mwongozo, and Section 7 of the Kenya Accreditation Service Act 2019. The board
members had varying appointrnent dates, which ensures there is no vacancy hindering
the conduct of board business. However, this was affected in the year under review due
to delays in the replacement of members whose contracts had expired. By the end of the
year, the board membership was 89% complete, with only one (1) vacancy remaining for
appointment.

Board Charter and Committee Terms of Refurence

The Board ensured continued implementation of the Board Charter as approved in May
2022 and the Committee Terms of Reference as approved in April2022.

Botrd remuneration

The Board of Directors is remunerated as per Section 27 otlhe KENAS Act 2019 and as
determined by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission.

Board Performance

The board implemented a performance improvement plan for FY 202112022.

Appolntment and removal of directons

Board appointments are in line with Arlicle 27 of the Constitution and the KENAS Act
2019.

Board induction and training

Board members appointed from July 2022 lo March 2023 received Mwongozo Code
training from SCAC and lCS. A board rekeat in February 2023 included risk management
training for all members.
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Board Ethics, Conduct and Governance Audit

The Board adhered to ethics, laws, rules, and regulations and concluded the
implementation of the recommendations from the FY 2019/2020 Legal, Compliance, and
Governance Audit.

Going Concern

KENAS declared improved financial sustainability as of June 30,2023, with operational
surplus of Kshs. 13,381,124, current assets of Kshs. 127,059,238 and liabilities balances
of Kshs. 116,649,671. The ability to continue as a going con@rn is supported by
management's actions, which include a new business model and an approved allocation
of Kshs 100 million for the EAP-K project in FY 202312024. As stated in the report,
directors anticipate having sufficient resources to maintain operations, and there is no
significant doubt about their capacity to fulfil their responsibilities throughout the ensuing
yeat.
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9 Management Dlscusslon and Analysls

a) Summary of Flnanclel Result! ag.lnlt Budget

The provided summary illustrates the budgetary trend for both revenue and expenditure

over the period from the financial year 2O2O|2O21 lo2022l2O23, as presented in Table 8.

feble 8: Flnenclel Resulls ,gelnst Budgot from FY 2022/2021 to 2022/12023

l) Revenue

Rovenue performance FY 202012021 to FY 202212023

a00,000,000

t10,000,000

rlo,ooo,ooo

2f0,000,000

200,000,000

100,000,m0

r00,00(,,@0

!10,000,0(,0

FY 20.20fN21 FY 2o21t2!.22 F\ 2022nO23

Th6 KENAS revenue grew by Kshs. 47,516,071(21Yol from FY 2020fi2021 lo FY
2021D022 and by Kshs 1 15,959,551 (460/o) from FY 2021n022 to FY 202212023 as is
shorn in Figure 1 and in Figure2.

285,090,862 251,382,031 370,240,000 367,341,s82Rlvcnuc 230,410,000 203,865,960

257,748,602 370,240,000 371,588,793Etp.ndltur. 230,410,000 242,905,693 286,090,862
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/t00,000,000

350,000,000

300,000,000

25{t,000,000

200,000,000

150,000,000

100,000,000

50,000,000

FY 2020n021 Fy 2021t2022 Fy 2022n023

rBudget.Rovenuo

Flgure 1 : Revenue pe ormanca egelnst the Budget from Fy 2020/2021 to Fy 2022/:lo2g

j) Expenditure performance against budget

KENAS spent a total of Kshs. 371,588,793 against a total budget of Kshs. 37O,24O,OOO

resulting to an absorption rate ol 1o0o/o an improvement from FY 202112022 and Fy
202012021 which was at 90% and 105% respectively as shown in Figure 2.

ii) Expenditure trend analysis from FY 202012021 to FY 202212023

KENAS spent a total of Kshs. 371,588,793 out of which Kshs. 357,132,156 (96%) was

recurrent and Kshs. 14,456,637 (4%) was development expenditure. The use of goods

and services and employee costs expenses increased by 31o/o and 30% respectively due

to the increased operations and recruitmenl of nineteen (19) staff in the year under review

respectively. Additionally, recruitment of ten (10) board staff positions, a fully reconstituted

board and development of rules of practice for the Accreditation Appeals Tribunal within

the year under review, led to increased expenditure of remuneration of directors by 21o/o.

Disposal of idle and unserviceable assets led to the 10% and decrease in depreciation

and amortisation expenditure. Repairs and maintenance expenditure increased by 8%

due to the ageing fleet coupled with the relocation costs. Development expenditure

increased by 82o/o due to pre-project activities. A trend variance analysis based on the

key vote heads from FY 2O2Ol21 loFY 2022123 is illustrated in Table g and Figures 3 and

4 were as follows.

fable 7: Expendlture comD€,rlson between FY 202U2021 and FY 2021n022

Do.crlptlon/Flnaclal Years 2020t2021 202112022 2022t2023 % Chang.
2021t2022 202212023

Use of Goods and Services 79,068,233 87,515,353 127,139.111 10 31

Employee costs 127,269,102 135,566,918 192,437.387 b 30
Remuneration of Directors 21,931,009 20,458,786 26,033,537 (7\ 2'l
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D6!crlptlon/Flnaclal Yeer. 2020t2021 2021t2022 202212023
% Change

2021t2022 2022t2023

Depreciation and Amortisation 7,614,079 6,602,897 6.009,066 (15) (10)

Repairs and Maintenane2 4,019,079 5,058,777 5,513,055 21 8

Development expenditure 3.004.191 2,545,871 14,456,637 (18) 82

-70vo

a%

Flguto 2: Expanditura comparlson belwaen F'f
2020n021 and FY 2021nO22

Ftgun 3: Expendlture comprdson belween FY
2021nO22 ,nd FY 2022/2023

. U!. oa Good drd Sar\ri.6

. tirtplF cGlt

. RcrlrEratbn ol t .edo.!
. D.r..ci.rbn.rd arnqtilar'bn
. Repai! rrd ta.htcrl.rEc

b) Operational Performance

l) Asseccment and Accredltation

KENAS reviewed seventy-three (73) applications against a target of sixty-four (64) from
new applicants and scope extension for existing clients, conducted one hundred and
ninety-three (193) assessments against a target of three hundred and five (305),

accredited twenty-three (23) new CABs against a target of forty-five (45) and delivered
thirty (30) training courses against a target of forty-five (45).

ll) lntemational and Reglonal Obligations

KENAS demonstrated active involvement in international and regional fora such as lAF,
ILAC, AFRAC, EAAB, CASCO, lSO, and WTO by influencing accreditation policies and
standards and attained a 97o/o pafticipation score. ln addition, KENAS undenarent

successful peer evaluation by ILAC through AFRAC. Some staff members conducted
AFRAC Peer Evaluations for other accredilation bodies. KENAS revitalised and
convened the 1d EAAB meeting in Nairobi. lt is also notable that one staff member
completed the inaugural CASCO Convenor Mentorship Programme.

iii) lnstitutional Capacity and Governance

KENAS implemented the approved Human Resource lnstruments of 2019 to enhance
operations and service delivery by recruiting nineteen (19) new staff and promoting two
(2) staff across various departments. Additionally, a succession management plan was
executed to ensure organizational growth and development.
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iv) Key projects implemented or ongoing

The following initiatives and projects were undertaken in the year under review;

a. Offlce movement to accommodate the increase in number of staff;
b. Enhancing KENAS lntellectual Property Rights and brand visibility by rebranding;
c. Proposed amendments to the Act with an aim of ensuring that implementation of

the KENAS Act 2019 is cost effective; and
d. Carried out pre-project activities for the EAP-K project this included alignment of

the Project implementation plan to the Bottom-Up Economic Transformation
Agenda and recruitment of two (2) project officers and three (3) project assistants.

v) Compliance with Statutory requirements

KENAS complied with its Legal lnstrument, the Kenya Accreditation Service Act 20'19 and
other legal frameworks.

vi) Major risks facing KENAS

KENAS faces and continued to monitor liquidity risk which was attributed to delays and/or

non-payments of fees by clients resulting in not honouring obligations as and when they

fell due. The current debtors' portfolio as at 30 June 2023 was Kshs. 54,822,000 out of

which Kshs. 3,710,940 is non-performing. A provision of Kshs. 1,'154,563 was made to

cover the non-performing debtors.
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l0 Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

KENAS aims to achieve its mandate through sustainable business practices as anchored

on its mission of being a symbol of trust, safety and quality assurance. This commitment
guides the delivery of our strategy to ensure protection of ecosystems, mitigation of the

impact of climate change, promotion of sustainable resource use and investing in

sustainable technologies. Below is an outline of the KENAS policies and activities that
promote environmental assurance and sustainability.

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

KENAS is committed to sustainability and recognizes the significance of fostering
responsible practices to create a positive impact on the environment, society, and the

economy. Our approach to sustainability centres on integrating sustainable practices

throughout all aspects of our operations in the financial, social and environmental

aspects. Some sustainability activities planned at the onset of the year under review,

ranging from financial, social, and environmental.

a) Financial

ln the year under review, KENAS continually engaged stakeholders with an aim to ensure
financial sustainability. The strategies that KENAS has put in place in the recent years

have helped achieve 11% growth in revenue.

KENAS relocated to its current office space to allow for expansion of its human resource

element and ensure future growth of its accreditation and haining activities.

b) Social

KENAS activities are aligned towards promotion of good health, well-being and
mentorship opportunities. ln its role, KENAS accredited CABs that test, certify and inspect
with an aim to promote good health and well-being. ln the year under review KENAS also
engaged various stakeholders during World Accreditation Day as part of business
collaborations geared lowards sustainability. KENAS has a robust mentorship
programme of engaging youths on industrial attachment for purposes of equipping them
with hands on skills.

ii) Environmental performance

During the year under review KENAS implemented a variety of measures to uphold
environmental performance such as waste management, energy consumption and local
conservation programs such as the presidenl's directive to achieve 1 5 billion tree
coverage by 2030 dedicated to upholding its environmental performance by implementing
measures to manage biodiversity, waste and energy consumption through putting in

place initiatives such as the use of reusable water bottles by staff to reduce plastic waste,
participation in local conservation programs such as tree planting, Enforcing print quotas
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or policies like automatic duplex, grayscale printing to cut down colour ink and paper

usage as well use of energy saving bulbs with the goal of contributing to a more

sustainable future.

KENAS has initiated the creation of a Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Validation and Verification

accreditation scheme. ln partnership with the lnternational Civil Aviation Organization
(ICAO), and EASA (CORSIA), capacity-building programs have been conducted to equip

staff and other key stakeholders with the necessary knowledge in preparation for the
forthcoming scheme.

iii) Employee welfare

We acknowledge the paramount importance of our employees as the organisation's most

valuable asset. ln the reporting year, KENAS implemented the recommendations of the
training needs analysis by providing targeted haining programs. Following a rigorous
performance Appraisal process, KENAS promoted those who had shown exceptional
performance in their work. Additionally, KENAS carried out recruitment to ease employee

workload especially within the previously understaffed departments.

Furthermore, strict compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007 was

upheld. Remarkably, KENAS set up variety of facilities to foster an inclusive work
environment.

iv) Marketplace practices

a) Responslble competition practice.

KENAS upholds a commitment to impartiality in the Accreditation Process, ensuring that
all CABs are treated fairly, and services are provided equitably to all clients. Furthermore,

KENAS encourages healthy competition among CABs by refraining from interfering with

their business operations. ln its assessment activities, KENAS relies on internationally
recognised standards which are premised on common parameters thus fostering fair
global practice.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations.

Procurement policies have been in place to ensure fair competition considering the
economy, efficiency, transparency, and accountability according to legal and statutory
requirements consistent with the governing law. KENAS adheres to the Public
Procurement and Assets Disposal Act 2015 and the Public Procurement and Assets
Disposal regulations 2020 lo increase transparency in procurement procedures and
ensure limely payment to suppliers.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement

Responsible marketing and advertising involve promoting accreditation awareness
among the Kenyan Population. Through advocacy and awareness programmes, KENAS
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reinforced the social and ethical values of accreditation, especially the need for
accreditation in critical sectors. As a result, more Kenyans are becoming aware of the
importance of accreditation.

d) Product stewardship.

Product stewardship is a fundamental principle outlined in Article 46 of the Constitution
of Kenya. lt also emphasizes the right of consumers to safeguard their well-being, safety,
and economic interests.

ln alignment with this constitutional provision, KENAS collaborates closely with regulatory
bodies and government stakeholders to ensure the protection of consumer rights and
interests. This involvement encompasses active participation in the development,
monitoring, and execution of policies and standards to safeguard consumers effectively.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

KENAS is committed to building sustainable community relations within the communities
and sectors it supports. lt undertook Corporate Social Responsibility through participation
in The Mater Heart Run with the aim of promoting good health amongchildren with heart
disease
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11 Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2023, which show the KENAS state of affairs.

i) Principalactivities

The principal activities of KENAS are as stipulated under Section 6 of the Act, to accredit
and exercise oversight over organisations (both private and public) that carry out
conformity assessment activities. These organisations include; testing laboratories,
calibration laboratories, medical laboratories, certification bodies, and inspec{ion and

verification bodies.

KENAS promotes the competence of accredited bodies worldwide through signatory
membership to regional and international bodies, training, establishing criteria and
requirements for accreditation schemes based on intemational standards and guidelines,

and other research activities.

ii) Resulta

KENAS results for the financial year ended June 30,2023, are set out on page 1 of these
financial statements.

iii) Directolrs

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on xxv.
During the year, three (3) independent board members retired, the alternate to the PS

state department of lndustry was replaced, the Board Chairperson and two (2)

independent directors were replaced with appointment of a new chairperson and four (4)

independent directors two (2) moths to the end of the financial year.

iv) Surplus remission

KENAS did not realize any surplus during the year and hence no remittance to the
Consolidated Fund since lhe operational surplus of Kshs. 13 million was utilized to fund
capital expenditure as per the approved budget.

v) Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of KENAS under Article 229 of
the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act, 2015 for the FY 2022D023, ended
30th June 2023 in accordane,e to Section 23 of the Public Audit Act, 2015, which
empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor to audit on his behatf.

Qy Or$er of the Board

Fl-{)\\
Francls Aoko Olalo
Corporation Secretary/Secretary to the Board
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12 Statement of Directors Responsibilities

According to Section 81 of the Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and Section 31 of
the Kenya Accreditation Service Act 2019 ('17 ot 2019) require the Directors to prepare

financial statements of KENAS which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
KENAS as at the end of the Financial Year 202212Q23.The Directors are also required to
ensure that KENAS keeps proper accounting records, which disclose reasonable

accuracy of the financial position of the KENAS. The Directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of KENAS.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the KENAS financial

statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of KENAS for and as at

the end of the financial year ended on June 30,2023 This responsibility includes:

(D Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that
these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy

at any time the financial position of KENAS;

(iii) Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring thal
they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud;

(iv) Safeguarding the assets of KENAS;

(v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(vi) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the KENAS financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates, in conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accounting

Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Acl,2012 and the Kenya
Accreditation Service Act, 2019.

The Directors are of the opinion that KENAS financial statemenls give a true and fair view
of the state of the KENAS transactions during the financial year ended 30 June 2023, and
of KENAS financial position as al that date. The Directors further confirms the
completeness of the accounting records maintained for KENAS, which have been relied

upon in the preparation of KENAS financial statements as well as the adequacy of the
systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attenlion of the Directors to indicate that KENAS will not remain
a going concern for at least the nelit twelve months from the date of this statement
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KEl,lAS financial statements were approved by the Board on o S.pbmber, 2023 and
signed on lta behalf by:

,

ngeny BIWOTT
Chalrpecon of the Board
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

Enhanchg A c<ttrot obi litl,

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box foo84-oo1oo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA ACCREDITATION SERVICE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements which considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations which have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner, to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that the entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ot the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Accreditation Service set
out on pages 1 to 43, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023, statement of financial performance, the statement of changes in net

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenyq Accreditation Service for the year ended 30 June, 2023



assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary ol significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kenya Accreditation Service as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and complies with the
Public Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Kenya Accreditation Service Act, 2019.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Accreditation Servicc Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

As previously reported, the statement of changes in net assets reflects retained earnings
debit balance of Kshs.74,120,948 (2021-2022 Kshs.86,848,602) debit. Further, the
statement of financial position reflects cunent liabilities balance of Kshs.1 16,649,671
(2021-2022: Kshs.94,826,851) against current assets of Kshs.74,360,643 (2021-2022:
Kshs.80,307,216) resulting to a negative working capital of Kshs .42,289,028 (2021-2022:
Kshs.'14,519,635).

Management has not assessed the ability of the Service to continue as a going concern
and the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis on the
assumption that the Service will continue to get financial support from the National
Government and creditors.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year lssues

ln the audit .eport of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources, which have remained
unresolved as at 30 June,2023.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Accreditation Seruice for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the basis for conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, lconfirm that,
nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have
not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. lrregularities in the Recruitment of Staff

The statement of financial performance and as indicated in Note 10 to the financial
statements reflects employee costs amount of Kshs.192,437,387. During the year under
review, the Service recruited seventeen (17) staff. Review of the recruitment documents
provided for audit revealed that two (2) of the recruited staff had met the selection criteria
and were recommended for selection in the event that the best candidates in their
respective categories for Supply Chain Management Officer and Accreditation Officer-
Calibration did not accept the appointment offer. Further, the advertised positions per
category required to be filled by 'only one candidate. However, the Management
on-boarded two candidates per category instead of having the single advertised vacancy
filled. Further, other candidate ranked second in the interview was appointed in the
position of Senior Training and Capacity Building Officer that had not been advertised.
The position advertised was principal training and capacity building officer which was filled
by the best ranking candidate. The second ranking candidate was recommended for
appointment should the first candidate reject the offer.

ln the circumstances, the Service was in breach of the law for appointment of non-existent
positions and failing to competitively advertise.

2. Recruitment of Staff without the Approval of the National Treasury

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements reflects an amount of Kshs.192,437,387 relating to employee costs. lt was
observed that there were seventeen (17) staff recruited in the year under review. Audit
verification of the recruitment process, revealed that the Service through the parent
ministry wrote to the National Treasury for approval to fill seventeen (17) vacant positions
in a letter reference No. MITED/SDI|S|'!2 daled I Ju!y,2021. However, there was no
evidence of a written approval from the National Treasury confirming requisite budgets
and sustainability thereof but the Management sought board approval only and went on
to fill the new positions.

This is contrary to circular number OP/CAB.9/1A of 7 February, 2022 which requires
possession of a written confirmation of requisite budgets for the recruitment and
sustainability thereof, from the National Treasury and existence of Board Resolutions
approving the recruitment.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Accredilalion Service for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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3. lrregular Engagement of lnterns

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements reflects an amount of Kshs.192,437 ,387 in relation to employee costs. This
included amount of Kshs.500,000 paid to four (4) interns who were engaged by the
Service for the period between 1 February, 2023 to 31 July, 2023. Audit review of human
resource documents provided for audit revealed that the interns had already benefited
from a similar programme in Public Service internship programme during the period
between 1 February,2022lo 31 January,2023.

This is contrary to Appendices 1 (3Xiv) of the Public Service Commission lnternship
Policy and Guidelines for Public Service 2016, on eligibility which states that the persons
eligible for this programme shall not have benefited from a similar programme.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the regulations.

4. Board Expenses Exceeding 5% of Entity's Operation and Maintenance Budget

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial
statements reflects an amount of Kshs.26,033,537 relating to Board and tribunal
expenses out of which Kshs.20,176,077 was in respect to remuneration of board
members. The expenditure represents 15o/o of operations and maintenance budget
totaling to Kshs. 1 32,652, 166 comprising of use of goods and services and repairs and
maintenance amounting to Kshs.127,139,111 and Kshs.5,513,055 respectively.
However, there was no evidence of approval granted by the National Treasury for
exceeding the set threshold. This was contrary to Paragraph D of Management of State
Corporations Circular OP/CAB.9/1A dated 11 March, 2020 that capped board expenses
of State Corporations at Kshs.30,000,000 or 5olo of the operations and maintenance
budget whichever is less and that any exceeding budgets shall require approval of the
cabinet secretary for the National Treasury.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the regulation.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities which
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenyo Accreditqtion Service for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements which are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Service's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Service or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Service's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report which includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls
will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

Report of the Audilor-General on Kenyq Accreditation Servicefor lhe year ended 30 June, 2023
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influencE the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities which govern them in accordance with the provisions of
Article 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article
229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control which
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which, the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatement caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited, may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also;

r ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the Service's
ability to sustain its services. lf lconclude that a material uncertainty exists, lam
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if sucir disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit

a
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Service to cease to
sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner which achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Service to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control which are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS
AUDITOR-GENE L

Nairobi

06 March, 2024

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Accreditation Semice for the year ended 30 June, 202i
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14 Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2023

The noles set out on pages 7 to 44 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 6 were signed on behaf of the Board of
Directors by:

J'*,
ilertin ea
Accounting Officer

Henry Wandabwa
Heed of Finance

ngeny BIWOTT
Chairmen of the Board

ICPAK Il/No:

Dare: l(r,

1

Rlvenue fiom non{xchrnga trantactlonr
Transfers ftom other governments entities 6 250,239,998 110,410,000

250,239,098 fl0,410,000

Rcvenus from oxch.ngc tran!.ctlont
Rendering of services 7 116,502,733 105,972,031
Other income 8 598,851
Totrl rrYenue 367,34{.582 213.s82.031
Erpenrcc

Use of goods and services I 127.139.111 87,515,353
Employee costs 10 192.437.387 135.566.918
Board Expenses 11 26,033.537 20,458,786
Oepreciation and amortization expense '12 6,009,066 6,602,897
Ropairs and maintenance 13 5,513,055 5,058,777
Total arpanse. 357,132.156 265,202,731
Oth.r g.ln3/(lo.to.)
Gain/Loss on sale of ass€ts 14 (539.806) 555,000
Gain/Loss on foreign oxchange transactions 't5 3,71 1,503 2,018,349
Surplu., (d.ficlt) bcforc tu 13,381.121 (33,247,350)

Taxation

Surplur/(dcflclt) lor the perlodlycer 13,381,lU (38,27,3501
Remission to National Treasury

N.t Surplur for ths y.ar 13,381.12't t36.247.350t

Dab: Hd',lz)tg
6859

4 zurq Date 12 '74L1
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l5 Statement of Financlal Posltion as at 30 June 2023

The financial statemenls set out on pages 1 lo 6 were signed on behatf of the Board of
Direotors by:

,(

trrdn eshc
Accbuntng O{ficer

oauz /@2 iltlK

Henry Wandabwa
Heed of Finance
ICPAK
Date:

mfttrilflr
ngeny BIWOTT
Chairman of the Boerd

2

Alacte

C0t"anl Aaaota

4,818,005 613,141Cash and Cash equivalents 16

39,664,05317 54,822,000Receivables from Exchange Transactions

39,524,384Receivables from Non-Exchange Transac-tions 18 14,380,848

505,63819 339,789lnventories

74,360,64:! 80,307,216Td.l Cur"cnt A$ctr
Non-Clrrrcnt Araeta

11,184,367Prop€rty, Plant and Equipment 20 52,412,548

21 286,046 '1,017,180lnbngible Assets

52,898,584 12,201,97Tol.l Non- Cumnt A.sot
127,055,238 92,508,78.3Tot l Ar..t

Ll-llltL.
Cultcnt Ll.bllltlr.

22 77 ,336,317 73,843,746Trade and Other Payables

23 39,3't3,354 20,983,105Cuirent Provision

116,6.19,671 0a,826,851Toll Currnt Llebllltlcr
ga,t26,851Toht Lhbllltle! 1.t6.649,671

N.t Ar..t
19,530,5'15 19,530,515R6serves

Accumulated Surplus (74,'.t20,945) (86,848,602)

65,000,000 65,000,000Cafital Fund

Total Net Asseb 10/400,567 (2,3r8,087)

Total .t A$ot .nd Ll.bllru.t 127,059,238 92,508,7G4

6q5s .. I
7{'1 1; t ; Date: 1'?) 4Z
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16 Statement of Changes ln ilet Assets for fre year ended 30 June 2023

Note:

*Adiustments for tte year rclates to rcvercals and write-otr for invoies and proisions for 20212022 that did not materiatise as payables

3

Krh. l(rh. K!h. KrhE
A! !t July l, 2021 10,030,5,t5 (s2,5:18,809) 30,rxr0,000 (5,508,293)
Adjustnenb br the year 'I,937,556 1,937,556
Revaluation Reserve of Motor Vehicle 3,500,000 3,500,m0
Surplus/ deficit for the year (36,247,350) (36,247,350)

CapitaUdevelopment grants received during the year 35,000,ofi) 35,000,000

Ar rt Junc 30, mzl 19,53t,515 (88,8.18,602) 85,000,tx10 (2,318,087)

Ar rt July l, 2022 19,530,5r5 (86,8{8,602) 65,(xn,m0 (2,3r8,087)
Adjustrnents for the year' (653,469) (653,,169)

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 13,381,124 13,381,124

A3 rt Junc 3lr, 2023 r9,530,515 (7.,rx,018) 05,000,000 10/400,567
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17 Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

Nole: The differences between the cash flow figures vis-a-vis the financial performance

is because the financial performancc is prepared on accrual basis while cash flow is on

cash basis.

1

d..h flow: frcm op.nung .ctlvltl.!
fuc6lpt3

6 250,239,998 110,410,000Transfers from ottrer govemments entities

130,304,951 63,056,257REndering of services

11,072,858 42,455,906Olher income"

215,922,18339t,8t7,807Totrl rtcclpt

Paymcntr

98,674,374 43,2U,197Ure of goods and services"

209,180,096 146,119,219E nployes costs"
20,458,78611 26,033,537Board Expenses

5,513,055 5,058,77713Rapairs and maintenance

2t4,880,979339,'O't,062TOt l p.ym.nt!
26 62,216,715 I,t 4l,l84Nat c..h flowt trom(u..d ln) op.rrUng ectlvltlct

Ca.h llow! ,rcm lnv.ltlng rcdvltl..
(47,472,074') (2,s4s,8721Purchase of PPE and lntangible assets 20

555,000Proceeds from sale of PPE 14 (539,806)

(1,990,872)Itat c.!h flow. tromr(u..d ln) lnv..tlng .ctlyltlG ('18,011,880)

tf,20{,t65 (949,888)Nd lncrr.!.r(dccE.rc) ln c.sh &
Cth cqulv.lcnt

16 613,141 {,562,t29C6h and cash equivalents at 1 July

613,1t11C.f h .nd ct.h .qulvrl.ntr rt 30 Juno 16 4,8rt,006
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:j,
,.,ti.

.r

.dr
,-HiHl-iH

a b c=(a+b) d s=1cd) tsdrc'100
Revenue
Transfers from Other Governments entities 250,210,000 30,000 250,240,000 250,239,998 2 100
Rendering of Services 69,900,000 50,100,000 120,000,000 '116,502,733 3,497,267 97
Other lncome 598,851 (598,851)
Total lncomo 320,110,000 50,130,000 370,2.10,fir0 367,3{1,582 2,898/at8 99
Expense6

Use of Goods and Services '108,253,994 17,937,995 126,191,989 127 ,139,111 (947,122) 101
Employee costs 171,316,951 21,297,563 192,614,514 192,437,387 't77 ,127 100
Remuneration of Directors 17,285,752 3,010,000 20,295,752 20,176,078 119,674 100
Remuneration of Accred itation Tribunal 8,579,303 (2,800,000) 5,779,303 5,857,450 (78,157) 101
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 5,000,000 960,000 5,960,000 6,009,066 (49,066) '101

Repairs and Maintenance 7,674,000 (1,800,000) 5,874,000 5,513,055 360,945 94
Total Expondfturo 318,110,000 38,605,558 356,715,558 357,132,t56 (416,s98) 100
Cepitel Expcnditure 2,(xn,000 11,5A,42 13,521,U2 14,456,637 (932,r95) 107
Total Expendlturo 320,fi0,000 50,130,000 370,240,000 371,588,793 (r,348,793) 100

18 Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts for the year ended 30 June 2023

" Statement ol budget comparison is preparcd on actrua, basis same as th e Financial peiormance and are both prepared and hence no vaiance ..

Budoet Notes:

Note i ' lncome: The variation under rcndering of serv,ces was due to non-fu!filment of financia! obligations by accredited clients thus
hindeing pertoffnance of scheduled activities.

Note ii - Changes between oiginal and final budget is due to rcvision in A in A ftom Kshs 69,900,000 to 120,000,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

l9 Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General lnformation

Kenya Accreditation Service is established under, and derives its authority and

accountability from the Kenya Accreditation Service Act 2019 (Act No. 17 ot 2019).

KENAS is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The
principal activity of KENAS is to assess and accredit organizations (both public and

private) that provide conformity of assessment services in line with set criteria based on

international standards and industry guidelines across all sectors of the economy.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at revalued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present

value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnternational Public

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. lt

also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the KENAS

accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are

disclosed in Note 5 of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is
the functional and reporting currency of KENAS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State

Corporations Act, the Kenya Accreditation Service Act 2019, and lnternational Public

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been

consistently applied for all the years presented.

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the
year ended 30 June 2023

I

thFdlrd Efirctlve drtc rnd lmpact:

tPsAs 41:
Financial
lnstruments

Applicable: l"t January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial
reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment
of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

6
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IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29, by:

a) Applying a single classification and measurement model for
financial assets that considers the characteristies of the asset's
cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

b) Applying a single fonarard-looking expected credit loss model that
is applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment
testing; and

c) Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model
develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management
strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as part

of the risk management strategy.

The amendment ol the standard did not have any impact on the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

IPSAS 42:
Social
Benefrts

Applicable: 1tt January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability of the information that a
reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social
benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial
statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

a) The nature of such social benefits provided by KENAS.

b) The key features of the operation of those social benefrt schemes;
and

c) The impact of such social benefits provided on KENAS's financial
performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendment of the standard did not have any lmpact on the
ftnancial statemenb for the year ended 3O June 2023
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Amendments
to Other
IPSAS
resulting from
IPSAS 41,
Financial
lnstruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a. Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b. Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illuskative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 41 was issued.

c. Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting

for financial guaranteed contracts which were inadvertently omitted
when IPSAS 41 was issued.

d. Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying
financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

The amendment of the standard did not have any impact on the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Other
improvements
to IPSAS

Applicable l"t January 2023

a. /PSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial lnformation about the General

Govemment Seclor. Amendments to refer to the latest System of
National Accounts (SNA 2008).

b. /PSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite
social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

c. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS
handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4't which is applicable
from 1"tJanuary2023.

The amendment of the standard did not have any impact on the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

,t. New and amended standards and interpretations in rbsue but not yeL

effective in the year ended 30 June 2023.

8$ndrrd Efirc0vc drt rnd lmp.ct:

IPSAS 43 Applicable lst January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that
lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that
faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis
for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases have

8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

iii. Early adoption of standards

KENAS did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year or
KENAS adopted the following standards early (state the standards, reason for early
adoption and impact on entity's financial statements.)

on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an
Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

KENAS did not early- adopt any new ot amended standards in the
financial year

tPsAs 44:
Non- Current
Assets Held
for Sale and
Discontinued
Operations

Applicable lst January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be
presented separately in the statement of financial position and the
results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the
statement of fi nancial performance.

KENAS did not aarly- adopt any new or amended standards in the
financial year

I
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from nonexchange transactions

Tnnsfers from other government entities

Ranenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured

at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits

or service potential related to the asset will flow to KENAS and can be measured reliably.

To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to
repay the amount, the amount is recorded in the statement of financial position and

realised in the statement of financial performance over the useful life of the assets that
has been acquired using such funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactaons

Rendering of services

KENAS recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of
total estimated labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,

revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to KENAS.

lnterest income

lntorest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts
estinated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to
determine interest income each period.

,t0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b) Budget information

The original budget for lhe FY 202212023 was approved by the National Assembly on
June 2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriatlons were made to the approved
budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The
additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the KENAS upon receiving

the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, KENAS
recorded additional appropriations of Kshs. 50,130,000 on the 202212023 budget
following the governing body's approval.

KENAS budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The flnancial statements are prepared on accrual
basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the stalement of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the
financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified
by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget
and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then
presented in the statement of comparison of budget and ac{ual amounts. ln addition to
the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial slatements are also made
for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of
the financial statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the actual
amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance has been
presented under section 17 of these financial statements.

c) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in the area where KENAS operates and generates taxable
income. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is
recognized in net assets and not in the statement of financial performance. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable

temporary differences, except in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with

investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax

assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry fonryard of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with

investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax

assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences

will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the

ternporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assetto be utilized. Unrecognized deferred

tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are

expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based

on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside
surplus or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction in net assets. Defened tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and lhe deferred taxes relate to the same taxable KENAS and the same taxation
authority.

Salos tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

i) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxalion authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is

included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

12
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Gontinued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

d) lnvestment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes
lhe costs of day{oday maintenance of an investment property. lnvestment property
acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using
the cost model and are depreciated over a four (4) year period. lnvestment properties are
derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service potential is
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of
derecognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a
change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipmont

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, KENAS recognizes such parts as individual assels with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-
exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its
fair value.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of each
asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life using the following annual rates:

Furniture and Fittings 12.5o/o

Motor Vehicles 25o/o

Computers and Software 33.3Yo

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to
their carrying amount and are considered in determining surplus for the year.

13
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental

to ownership of the leased item to KENAS. Assets held under a finance lease are

capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or,

if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. KENAS also

recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability

recognized is measured as the present value of the fulure minimum lease payments at

initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned

between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized

as finance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated

over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that KENAS
will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

g) lntangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of
the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are canied at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated

intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and

expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is

incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.
lntangible assets with an indefinite useful life are assessed for impairment at each
reporting date.

h) Research and development costs

KENAS expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project

are recognized as intangible assets when KENAS can demonstrate:

The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available
for use or sale.
Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.
How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential
The availability of resources to complete the asset.
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

iii

iv
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. lt is amortized over the period
of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for
impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or
deficit.

i) Financialinstruments

IPSAS 41 addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets. KENAS does not have any hedge relationships
and lherefore the new hedge accounting rules have no impact on the KENAS financial
statements. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise lo a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial
recognition, KENAS measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or
minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus
or deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability.

a) Financial assets

Clasgification of financial aseets

The KENAS classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis
of both KENAS's management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cosl
when the financial asset is held within a management model whose objective is to hold
financial assels in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair
value through net assets/ equity if it is held within the management model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contrac{ual cashflows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. A financial
assel shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it is measured at
amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless an entity has made
irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity instruments.
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Subsequent moasurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, KENAS classifies its

financial assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments.

Movements in fair value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/
equity subject to certain criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at
fair value through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an
inslrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired.
lnterest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in

surplus/deficit. lnterest income from these financial assets is included in finance income

using the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any
uncollectible amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a
conthuing basis. An estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all
outstanding amounts at the year end.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net
assets/ equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model
where KENAS manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through
solely the sale of the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

lmpairment

KENAS assesses, on a fonrtrard-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated
with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity.
KENAS recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.

b) Financial liabilities

Classification

KENAS classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for
financial liabilities measured through profit or loss.

j) lnventories

lnventory is measured al cost upon Initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost
of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incuned in bringing each
product to its present location and conditions are accounted for, as follows:

i) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.
ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity
but excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no

charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost
and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale, exchange, or distribution. lnventories are recognized as an expense when deployed
for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of KENAS.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when KENAS has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where KENAS expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
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expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance

net of any reimbursement.

l) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to'

i) Specific individuals and / or households that meet the eligibility criteria,
ii) Mitigate the effects of social risks
iii) Address the need of society as a whole

KENAS recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit scheme at the
same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme is

measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefrt payments) that KENAS will
incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

m) Contlngent liabilities

KENAS does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies
in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

n) Gontingent essets

KENAS does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset
whose existence is contingent on the occurence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of KENAS in the notes to the financial
statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements. lf 1t has become virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be
measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial
stalements of the period in which the change occurs.

o) Nature and purpoae of reserveg

KENAS creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Cunently
KENAS has no reserves maintained.
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p) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

KENAS recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The
effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

q) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

KENAS provides retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans are
post-employment benefit plans under which KENAS pays fixed contributions into a
separate Entity (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund
obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year
in which they become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans

other than defined-contribution plans. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce
the post-employment benefit obligation.

Gratuity obligations

KENAS pays service gratuity to stafi on contract under their terms of employment.
Employee entitlements to gratuity are recognized when they accrue to employees. A
provision for gratuity payable is made in the statement of financial position. The gratuity
is not subject to actuarial valuation. Total gratuity as at 30th June 2023 was Kshs.
30,u4,253

r) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange
on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency
are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange
rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from
the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded
during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and
equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

construction of the asset is complete. Further bonowing costs are charged to the

statement of fi nancial performance.

t) Related parties

KENAS regards a related party as a person or an Entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over KENAS, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Directors,

the Chief Executive fficer and senior managers.

u) Service concegsion arrangements

KENAS analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. ln

parlicular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, KENAS

recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the
operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what
price. ln the case of assets other than 'whole-ofJife' assets, it controls, through ownership,

beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the

end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To
the extent that an asset has been recognized, KENAS also recognizes a corresponding

liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

v) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits

on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less,

which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant

risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central

Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year.

w) Comperative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended
or reconfigured lo conform to the required changes in presentation.

x) Subsequent ovents

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact

on tte financial statements forthe year ended June 30,2023.

20



t
Kenya Accredltation Service (KENAS)
Annual Raport end Flnanclal Statemonts
for tho yoar ended June 30, 2023.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of KENAS's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. State all
judgements, estimates and assumptions made

Estimates and aseumptions.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabillties within the next financial year,

are described below, based on its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developmenls may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of KENAS. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual value

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators
to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by
KENAS.

b) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology
and processes.

c) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.
d) Availability of funding to replace the asset.
e) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the
information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in

Note 23. Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value
where the effect is materlal. The following were the provisions applicable during the
financial year:
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a) Provbion for bad debts
b) Provision for depreciation
c) Provision for Audit Fees
d) Provision for General Supplies
e) Provision for Leave days
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6. Transferr from Other Government entites

Traneierc from Minlgtsies, Departments end Agencies (MDAI)

Table E: Qurrt rly d/E,burs.menfr

The funds were appropriated for recurrent expenditure which includes personal

emoluments and operation & maintenance.

7. Renderlng of Serylcec

Accreditation fees relates to income realised from provision of accreditation services;

Training fee relates to income realised from training services offered while Reimbursable

income/Facilitation income relates to income realised from facilitation of assessors during

assessments of conformity assessment bodies respectively. The increase in accreditation

fees was due to more conformity assessment bodies assessed. The reduclion in training

income was due to less ISO/IEC standards undergoing transition. The reduction in

reimbursable fees due to transfer of assessment costs to the client.

2s0,239,998 110,410,000State Dept. for
lndustry

250,239,998

2s0,239,99E t10,410,000Tot l 250,239,998

Dltburrmant
dltr

Qul't r I DlrbuEamrnt
d.t

Outrtlr 2 DLburxmant
d.t

Oulrtar 3 Dbburtxtrant
drt

Qrl.rbr a

24th Augu-el 20,850,83,1 I r Novamber 20,850,833 3d Frbrusry 20,850,833 lah Apdl 20,850,83,1

30! August 20,850,833 2d Dccamb€r 20,850,833 6n Mardr 20,850,833 8th M.y 20,880,832

2lr S.ptqnb.r 20,850,833 28s Drcqrbcr 20,850,83.| 8th Mry 20,860,833

8th M.y 20,860,833

Total 62,552,500 Totrl 62,552,500 Tot!l 41,70't,666 Total 83,.(,3,332

56,674,751Accreditation f6es 92,325,467

12,649,036 21,813,403Training Fees

27,483,877'11,529,230Reimbursable lncom€/Facilitation fiEe

I {6,502,733 {05,972,031Tot l Contrlbutlons rnd Don.tlon.
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8. Other lncome

Note:

This is revenue realised from disposal of assets and insurance recpveries, however there
vrrBre no comparative figures. There were no insurance recoveries and no interest income

and income from disposals in the previous year.

9. Use of Goodrend Servlces

15,512
OisDosal of AsseG

90,101
Interest lncome

493,238l surance Recoveries

598,8t1Totrl Accr.dlt tl,on lncomc

'1,218,079 987,957:lectricity
290,479 168,415tv"t"t

4,2't 3,809 245,44pecurig
10,582,047 4,785,177Frofessional Services
't,048,587 1,076,946Bubscriptions
1,709,500 1,013,192Adv6rtising

350,000 350,000Audit Fees
5,209,563bonferences and Delegations 6,747,262

7,518,466 1,240,468Consumables

lFuel and oil 3,718,346 3,5,10,205

1,733,126lnsurance 2,73't,190

2,O19,707 2,988,536Legal Expenses

lPostage 1,478,428 1,202,492

rPrinting and Stationery 2,025,743 1,379,193

't,1't0,216 1,185,153lHire Charges

Rent €xpenses 24,131,0# 18,505,153

1,823,950 1,795,830Telecommunication
5,408,728 2,469,631Trainino

Accredltation Expenses 38,006,796 31,786,954

Bank Charqes 563,443

2,851,894Other General Expenses '10,413,279

ln.139.1't1 87.515.35.i1Totel t,!. of goodr rnd S.rYh..

Nofe
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lncrease in security expenditure was due to contracting of security seruices for our offices
which are under poftioning and remodelling.

lncrease in Professional seruices due to contracting of a recruiting agency to undeftake
the recruitment on behalf of the organisation coupled with contrccted services for printers

lncrcase in advedisement expenses was due to gazettement of the conformity
assessmenf bodrb s in the Kenya gazette in compliance with the Kenya accreditation Act
coupled with tender adverts and job advertisement.

Conference and delegation expenses lncreased due to increase in number of seminars
during the year aimed at reviewing policies, procedures in readiness for peer evaluation.

Consumables expenses lncreased due to increased number of staff and facilitation for
the team overseeing demolition and relocation to our new office.

Printing and stationary expenses increased due revision of ISO 15189 which required
pinting of the new standard and tnining materials duing the transition tnining.

Renf expenses increased due to transition to new offices and extension of the lease for
the previous offices to provide room for renovation of the new offices.

Training expenses incrcased due to implementation of the staff training and development
plan which led to trainings on senior leadership development program, senior
management and superuisory courses at Kenya School of Govemment.

Accreditation expenses included assessmenf expenses, scheme development, tnining
and advocacy, pafticipation in accreditation policy forums and enhancement of
accrcditation. The increase was attributed to pre-project activities for enhancement of
accreditation programme awaiting allocation from the exchequer.

Bank charyes for FY 20212022 amounting to Ksh.289604 was categorised under other
genenl expenses ln /r,he with the previous template.

Other general expenses include commiftee technical working group expenses for
development of new schemes which include Product Ceftification, Management System,
KS 1758 among otherc, peer evaluation, events meetings and exhibitions and prcvision
for bad debts. The seruice underwent a peer evaluation by the ILAC/IAF/AFRAC team,
and our staff members conducted AFRAC Peer Evaluations for other accreditation bodies
resulting to the increase in other general expenses.
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l0.Employee Coets

lnctease in salaries & wages, medical insurance, pension, housing benefits and

allg^rances and gratuity was due recruitment of 19 additional staff during the financial

year. Additionally, travel, accommodation, subsistence, & other allowances increased

to attendance in critical WTO and ISO CASCO meetings.

Sooial Contribution increased to due employers' assistance towards staff members

whg lost immediate family.

Gratuity of Kshs 12,145,015 relates to provision lor FY 202212023 resulting an

accumulated gratuity of Kshs 30,844,253 as shown in Note 23. The service opened a

gratJity account in February 2023 and transferred Kshs 4,474,355 as at 30th June 2023.

The balance of Kshs 26,369,898 shall be transferred by December 2023.

ll.Board and Trlbunal Expenaes

87,457,984 66,946,324
Salaries and waoes

15,271,4U 12,275,724
Emolover contribution to h€alth insurance schemes

4,644,8885,500,274
Emolover contribution to Dension schemes

21,713,176 7,040,260
Trgvel. accommodation, subsistence, & other allowances

33,666,49749,776,865
Housinq benefits and allowances

371,630140,308
Overtime Davments

20,000432,331
Srcial contributions

12,145,015 10,601,s95
GrEtuitv

t35,566,918102,a37,38fEmDloyaa coltr

709,333960,000Chdrman/Directors' Honoraria

5,766,000Sitting Allowances 7,151,595

709,079 456,887
Medlcal lnsurance

3,640,526lndLEtion and Training 3,313,158

26



Kenya Accreditation Service (KENAS)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended Juno 30, 2023.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

The board expenses increased due to additional board activity on recruitment of staff at
Board positions in April, August, September and November of 2023.

The expenditure includes to expenses incuned in facilitating the Accreditation Appeals
Tribunal activities centred on development of their operational instruments as shown in

table 23;

Table I Tribunal Expenses

D-crlptlon N:NI2,,2,, m2,,t,oin

K.h. X.h.

Chairman/Directors" Honoraria 960,000 960,000

Sitting Allowance 1,909,250 704,000

Medical lnsurance 599,66'l 571,109

lnduction and Training 1,477,996 0

Travel and Accommodation 673,569 364,908

Other Allowances 236,983 116,818

Total Remuneration of Tribunal
Committee

5,857,460 2,716,831

The increase in tibunal expenses was due fo expenses incuned in facilitating the
Accreditation Appeals Tribunal activities centred on development of their operational
instruments coupled with adjudication of an appeal that was raised by conformity
Assessmenf Body.

12. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Dxcrlptlon
20nt2023 ttlwin

K.hs l(.ht
Travel and Accommodation 6,981,602 6,398,059

Other Allowances 1,060,643 771,146

Tribunal Expenses (Table 9) 5,857,460 2,716,834

Total 26,033,537 20,458,786

Dercrlpdon
z0int?oiul ao,nl,o:z,

K.h. K.h.

Property, plant and equipment 5,277 ,932 3,604,153

lntangible assets 731 ,134 2,998,744

Total depreciation and amortization 6,009,066 6,602,897
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D..crlpdon
20g2t20xt 2021t2022

Krhr K.h.
Property and equipment 3,506,86s 1,666,048

Equipment and Machinery 29,231 158.731

Vehicles 1.700,922 3,095,942

Furniture and Fattings 38,330

Computers and Accessories 237,707 138,057

Total Repairs and Maintenance 5,513,055 5,058,777

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Repairs and Maintenance

The expenditure increased due to relocation to new offices with increased office space.

14.Gain on Sale of Assets

Ihe /oss arose from dlsposa/ of assels

15. Gain/Loss on foreign exchange transactions

The forex base rates are adjusted quarterly pegged on the central bank mean rate.

Foreign exchange gain realised on provision of accreditation and Training services to

foreign clients. No /oss realised since there has been a continuous nse in the value of the

dollar against the Kenya Shilling over the period.

Dqcdpdon
2o2i2t20A m21n022

l(.hr K.h.

Property, plant and equipment (539,806) 555,000

Total gain on sale of assets (539,806) 555,000

D.?rlptlon
20aa20zt 2021t2022

K.h. K.h!

Gain on foreign exchange transactions 3,711,503 2,018,349

Loss on foreign exchange lransactions

Total Galn/Loss 3,7't 1,503 2,018,349
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16. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

17. Receivables from Exchange Transactions

a) Receivables from Exchange Transactions (Current)

The general debtors include accreditation debtors amounting to Ksh. 51,042,788 and
training debtors of Ksh. 3,779,213

b) Ageing analysis for Receivables from exchange transactions

Docrlptlon
m22n02, 2U21nO?,2

K.h. Xrh.

Current Account

KCB Bank LTD (Kshs) 337,03'l 577,152

KCB Bank LTD (USD) 6,619 35,990

KCB Bank LTD (Gratuity) 4,47 4,355

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,818,005 613,142

Fln.ncla! ln.tltutlon Account numbar
202?,n023 m21noz2

Krh. ]Oh.

Current Account 1123414459 337,031 577,152

Kenya Commercial Bank 1125916923 6,619 35,990

Kenya Commercial Bank 13'11797475 4,474,355

Grand Total 4,818,005 613,142

D..crlptlon
2022n0i,3 mllt*in

Ktht K.h.
Recsivables

General Debtors
54,822,000 39,664,053

Total Curront Recoivablos 54,822,000 39,664,053

O..crlpdon
20i21212023 m21mz2

K.hr K.hr

Current FY % of the total
Comparative

FY
% of the total

Less than 1 year 43,276,375 79 37,299,830 94
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

18. Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

Note:The decrease the non-exchange transitions relation to an amount of Ksh

35,000,000 allocated in FY 202112022.

19. lnventories

These are stock items (stationery and other consumables) available as at June 30 2023

O?crtptlon
20xa2023 2021tm22

K.h. l(.h.

Between 1- 2 years 1,364,099 2 939,184 2

Between 2-3 years 8,180,641 15

Over 3 years 2,000,886 4 1,425,039 4

Total (a+b) 54,822,000 't 00 39,664,053 100

D.tcrlpdon
2022t2023 2021t20X1

K.h. Krh!

Sundry Debtors 1,835,749 3s,000,000

Statf Debtors 1,009,762 3,1 17,109

Guarantee Deposits I ,490,270 416,610

Salary Advances 923.745 990,665

Prepayments 179.878

8,941,445

Total recelvables from non- exchange
transactions

1'r,380,8,18 39,524,384

Ageing Analy6is- Receivables from
non- exchange transactions

2022t2023 % of the total 2021t2022
% of the
total

Less than 1 year 14,380,848 100Yo 39,s24,384 100%

Between 'l -2 years

Over 3 years

Total 14,380,848 100% 39,524,384 100%

Dxqdilbn
mz,,2023 2021t2o22

loh. K.h.

Consumable stores 339,789 505,638

Total lnventorles at the lower of cost and net realizable
value

339,789 505,638
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20.Property, Plant and Equipment

As At lJuly 2021 3,390,575 11,180,000 5,563,391 11,293,828 31,427,794

Additions 273,0't6 1,498,965 1,771,981

AdjGtnent (Revaluation)' 3,500.000 3,500,000

TransfursrAdjustnents (11,180,000) (11,180,000)

As et 30t Junc 2OZt 3,3r0,575 s,500,000 5,8:t6,a07 12,792,793 25,519,775

Addi[ons 5,719,280 6,752,024 35,000,770 47,472,074

Disposals (3,390,57s) (,r40,u1) (1,s78,848) (5,409,4A+)

A. rt 30or Junc 20Zt 3,500,fin l{,115,846 17,965,960 3s,000,20 67,582,t85

DcpItcLdon And hp.lm.nt
At lJury m2l 1,412,7 40 11,179,998 2,039,745 7,278,770 21,91',t,253

Depreciation 678,115 '145,833 574,585 2,205,620 3,604,153

Disposals (11,179,998) (11,17e,998)

Ar At 3Os Junc 2oZl 2,000,r55 ta5,0lg 2,8t4,330 I,a8r3S0 '14,335,.O8

Depreciation 508,586 875,000 873,869 3,020,476 5,277 ,931

Dispocals (2,599,441) (277,273) (1,566,788) (4,443,502)

Ar et 30h Junc 2023 1,020r3:l 3,210,925 10,938,07E 15,161.8:t7
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lffisb fte Ftnerctel Strlementr (Contnued)

Wo* in ptogress r'hcludes ongoing paftition wofus for KENAS new o/fices and Supply and delivery of Server

Valuation

No valuation of assets was done during the period under review

N6t Book Vslu..

A! et 30s Jun. 2022 1,299,7m 3,354,167 3,X22,OT7 3,308,403 ll,1&t,387

Ar at 306 Junc 2023 2,179,167 7,904,720 7,O27,891 35,m0,r,0 52,112,W
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20 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

lf the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis
the amounts would be as follows:

2l.lntanglble Assetl

Motor Vehicles, lncluding Motorcycles 3,500,000 1,020,833 2,479,167

Computers And Related Equipment 17,965,959 10,938,078 7,027 ,891

Office Equipment, Fumiture, And Fittings 11,115,&6 3,210,926 7,904,720

Work ln progress 35,000,770 35,000,770

Tot l 67,582,385 15,189,837 52,112,W

Co.t

At b.glnnlng of the y.rr
10,997,078 10.96a,322

Additions
773,891 32,755

At .nd ot thc yca,
11,770,989 10.997,077

Additions-internal development
773,891

At rnd ol thr ycer
IL770.980 11.770.968

Amortlzetlon end lmp.lrmcnt

At b.glnnlng of thr y..r
7.765.0a5 4,787,48

Amortization
2,998,744 2.987.556

At .nd ot th. ycar
10.753,788 7.755.044

lmpairment loss
731.lU 2.998.744

At cnd of th. ye.r
11,&,923 r0.75:l.7EE

NBV
286,046 {.017.180
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27.Tnde end Odrer Payablea

Thq incrcase in tnde and other payables was attributed to the ongoing paftitioning and

renlodelling of the new ofice premises.

23rCurtpnt Provlrlons

This is due to provision of gratuity for staff on contract

26,504,856TrFde payabl6s /14,343,604

13,633,263 20,908,623P4yments received in advance

6,810,858 10,039,659Third-party payments

16,390,608Otrer payables 12,548,592

Tqhl trrdc .nd oth.r p.y.b16 77,336,3r7 73,81t,74

%ol
th.

Tot

Aldng enrlyrb: (Tndc rnd othcr

Pryrblet)

2022n023 % ot tho

Totel

m.ntm22

98 22,229,U0 uUnder one year 43,304,483

161-l years 1,002,092 2 4,275,816

2-tr years 37,029

Ovf r 3 years

T4.l (th to .bovc tot l) tlr,3{l,C0.l 26,504,858

Brfncc b,' 20.227.'.t05 756,000 20,983,105

Adqitional provisions 12,145,015 8,379,515 20,6'.t4,1'.1689,586

Prdision utilizod (1,527 ,867) (7s6,000) (2,283,867)

Ch4nge du6 to discount and
timg value for money
Trahsfers from non .cunent
provisions
Tohl provblonr yeer cnd 19,56e 30,&r4,253 8,370,5{5 30,313,354
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24. Employee Benefi t Obligations

Retirement benefit AsseU Llabillty

a) Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

KENAS also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a
defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Ast. KENAS
obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time
and is currently at Kshs. 1080 per employee per month. Other than NSSF KENAS also
has a defined contribution scheme operated by ICEA Pension Fund. Employees
contribute 10% while employers contribute 20o/o of basic salary. Employer contributions
are recognized as expenses in the statement of financial performance within the period
they are incurred. A total of Kshs 5,500,274 was contributed by KENAS towards pension.

25.Surpluc Remlrclon (for category 3 entiUer)

ln accordance with Section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations,
regulatory entities shall remit into the Consolidated Fund, ninety per @ntum of its surplus
funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year. ln
line with this legal requirement KENAS did not make any surplus during the year
2022t2023 and hence no remittance to the Consolidated Fund.

26.Cech Generated from Operations

Surplur tor tha yaar beforc tax 10,209,426 (38,820,699)

Adrurt d for:

Change in Depreciation 6,975,029 6,602,897

Change in Revaluation (3,s00,000)

Gain on Foreign exchange 3,711,503 2,0't8,349

Worllng c.plt l .dlurtmint
Changes in lnventori€s 165,848 40,896

Change in Receivables 9,985,588 (42,956,570)

Change in payables 29,098,180 40,437,556

Changes in Retained eamings (653,46s)

lncrease in payments received in advance (7,27s,360) 37,218,85s

Not c.rh flowr lrom openting actlvltl.. 52,214,715 1,041,1U
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27. Financial Risk Management

KENAS's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity

risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. KENAS's overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and

seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting

acceptable levels of risk. KENAS does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to

ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

KENAS's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

l) Credit rlsk

KENAS has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and

deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale
financial investments. Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking

into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits

are set based on internal or external assessment in accordance with limits set by the

directors. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of
allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by KENAS's management based on prior

experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.

Finencial Risk Management

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing

KENAS's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any

collateral obtained ls made up as follows;

Table 10 financial risk Management

A! .t 30s Juno {FY 2022120231

Receivables
tranEactions

from exchange 54,822,000 21,024,590 33,797,410

Receivables from non-exchange
traniactions

14,380,848 14,350,848 30,000

Bank balances
4,818,005 4,818,005

Tot l
74,020,853 a0,193,443 33,827,/r10

Ar d 30 Juna 2022

Reeiivables
transactions

from exchange 39,664,053 33,779,152 21,324,744
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Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

39,524,384 39,524,384

Bank balances
613,141 6'13,141

Tot l 79,801,578 73,916,677 21,324,74

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial Rlrk Man.goment

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance
for uncollectible amounts that KENAS has recognised in the financial statements is

considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. KEl.,lAS has
significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from Kshs. 33,827,410. The board
of directors sets KENAS's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within
which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

ll) Liquldlty risk manegement

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with KEi.lAS's directors, who
have buih an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
KENAS's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
KENAS manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
flows. The table below represents cash flows payable by KEltlAS under non-derivative
financial liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant. KENAS liquidity ratio as at 30h June 2023 stood at 0.67.

Table 11 Liquid isk Management

A. .t 30s Jun. (Currcnt FY)

Trade payables 10,256,179 7,508,362 26,579,063 u,313,6U

Provisions 89,586 30,844,253 8,319,615

Employee benefit obligation

Totrl 10,345,765 7,508,362 57,123,318 52,723,119

Ar .t 30t Junc (PrcYlour FY')

Trade payables 2,392,2242 811,034 1,771,580 26,504,856
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lii) Market risk

KENAS has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by KENAS on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
inbrnal accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes
in market prices, such as interesl rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which
will affect KENAS's income or the value of its holding of financial inskuments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for
managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee. KENAS's
Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk management
policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee) and
for the day{o-day implementation of those policies. There has been no change to
KENAS's exposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk. KENAS
accredited clients take long to fulfil their financial obligations due to harsh economic
climate.

Financial Risk Management

a) Foreign currency risk

KENAS has kansactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases

of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. lnvoices
denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and
cmversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. KENAS
manages foreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and matching the same
with expecled payments.

Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of KENAS's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Mffiffi
18,017,215 20,983,,t 05Provisions 1,259,299 1,706,591

3,187,602 6,852,057 10,039,659Employee benefit obligation

9,222,359 /t40,131,536 57,527,820Total 6,569,695
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Current Financial Year

Table 12 Foreign risk currency-financial risk management

Financial Risk Management

The following table demonstrates the effect on KENAS's statement of comprehensive
income on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate
of the three main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The
reverse would also occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held

constant.

Table 13 Foreign risk currency-financial risk management

D-cdtrlon ln lohr
othrr
cumnclaa Tdr

tOhr X.h. l(.lr
A8 at 30th June 2023

Financial Assets

lnvestments

Cash 6,619 6,619

Debtors 9,533,170 9,533,170

Total Financial Assets 9,539,789 9,539,789

Financial Liabilities

Trade And Other Payables

Borrowings

Total Financial Llabillties

Net Foreign Currency Asseu(Liability)

D-crlptlon Ch.ng. ln
curlancy llL

Elirct on Prollt
b.to!.lrl

Efirc.t on
Eqolvril.f...6

K.h. lOh. l(.h.
2022t2023

Euro

USD 19% 3,71 1,503 3,71 '1,503

2021t2022

Euro

USD 9.9% 2,018,349 2,018,349

"Source: central Bank ol Kenya"
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b) lnterest rate risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that KENAS's financial condition may be adversely affected

as a result of changes in interest rate levels. KENAS's interest rate risk arises from bank

deposits. This exposes KENAS to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk

exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on KENAS's deposits.

Manaqement of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions

that offer favourable interest rates.

28. Related Party Disclosures

Nature of related oartv relationships

Entities and other parties related to KENAS include those parties who have ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.
Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family
members

Government of Kenva

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of KENAS, holding 100o/o of
KENAS interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term
lenders of the Entity, both domestic and external.

Other related parties include:

i) The National Government;
ii) The Ministry of lnvestments, Trade and lndustry;
iii) Other State Corporations and Ministries, Departments and Agencies;
iv) Key Management; and
v) The Board of Directors

Table 14 Related Pady Disclosurcs

Fffiffiil ffi..,rfeffi
Tranr.ctions wlth rslated partie!

r) Sal$ to rolatod partlo!

B) purchalas ,rom rrlated partles

b) Grants /trenrrers trom the govemment
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250,239,998 110,4't0,000Grants from National Government

Grants from county govemment

Oonations in kind

25{t,230,998 110,410,000Tot l

c)Exp.n!.r lncunrd on boh.lt ot relatcd p.rty

116,230,934Paym€nts of salaries and wages for 15 employees 155,020,,'146

Payments for goods and services

155,020,118 1r6,230,93{Totrl

dlKay managrmont companaatlon

26,073,s37 20,458,786Directors' 6moluments

Compensation to key management 59,653,057 40,566,530

8s,726,594 61,025,313Tot l

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements (Continued)

29. Evontr efter the Repordng Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

30.Ultimate end Holding Entity

KENAS is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the
Ministry of lnvestment Trade and lndustry. lts ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

3'1. Curroncy

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded to the nearest
Kshs.
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Note! to the Flnancial Statementg (Contlnued)

Appendix l: lmplementation Statuc of Auditor-Genenl'g Recommendatlons

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management
comments that were provided to the auditor.

1

Material Uncertainty
r€lating to Going
concEm

Already resotved through
increased A-l-A and GOK
Grants

Resolved Resolved

2 Budgetary Control
Already resolved through
adherence to approved
estlmates

Resolved Resolved

I,rt

chl utl Offlcer
Kenya Accreditation Service (KENAS)
Date: bTY/lD/:4c(,

ll:t
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Appendlx ll: ProJectr lmplemented by KENAS

ProJects implemented by KENAS Funded by development partners and/ or the

Government.

Appendix lll: Shtuc of ProJecte completlon

4
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Appendlx lV: Transfec ftom Odrsr Govemment Entiter

Ministry of
lnvestnents,
Trade and
lndusty

6c July
2022 Oevelopment 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000

Ministy of
lnvestments,
Trade and
lndusW

24fr1
August
2022

Recrinent 20,850,834 20,850,834 20,850,834

Ministry of
lnvestments,
Trade and
lndusw

3@
August
2022

Recunent 20,850,833 20,8s0,833 20,850,833

Ministry of
lnvestn€nts,
Trade and
lndusby

211
Septembe
t2022

Recunent 20,850,833 20,8s0,833 20,850,833

Minisfy of
lnvestments,
Trade and
lndusty

1r
November
2022

Recunent 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833

Ministy of
lnvestn€nts,
Trade and
lndusEy

zn
December
2022

Recunent 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833

Ministy of
lnvestments,
Trade and
lndusfry

28t'
December
2022

Reqrnent 20,850,834 20,850,834 20,850,834

tls
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Minbty of
lnvestments,
Trade and
lndusfry

3r{
February
2023

Recunent 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833

Minisfy of
lnvostnents,
Trade and
lndusty

6s March
2023 Recun6nt 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,8s0,833

MinEty of
lnvesfn€nts,
Trade and
lndusw

12th April
2023 Recunent 20,850,834 20,850,834 20,850,834

Minisry of
lnvestn€nts,
Trade and
lndUsW

8th May
2023 Recun6nt 20,860,832 20,860,832 20,860,832

Minisry of
lnvesfiEnts,
TEde and
lndusfy

8th May
2023 Recunent 20,860,833 20,860,833 20,860,833

Minisfy of
lnvestments,
Trade and
lndustry

8th May
2023 Recunent 20,860,833 20,860,833 20,860,833

Td.1 2E5,239,90t 215,239,908 3{t,000,000 35.m0,000 285,239,998

.a
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Appendlx V: lnter-Entity Confimation Letter

KENAS wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30th June 2023 as indicated in the table below. please compare the
amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below please sign and stamp this
request in the space provided and refum il to us.

,J

AmounE OlsbuG.d by [SCTSAGATFundl (KShr) er at 30th Junc
(Currcnt FY)

Amount Recalved by lbeneflclary
Entltyl
(KShs) as at 30s June (Prevlous
FY)
(E)

Dltror€ncos
(Kshc)
(F)=(D{)Refersnce

Number
Date
Olsbur!od

Recurrcnt (A) Dcvelopment (B) lnter-
inistcrlal

(c)

Total
(DF(A+a+c)

6th July 2023
35,000,000 35,000,000

'l9s August
2022 20,850,834 20,850,834 20,850,834
30s August
2022 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,8s0,833
21{ September
2022 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833
1d November
2022 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833
2d December
2022 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833
28h December
2022 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833
3d February
2023 20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833
6s March 2023

20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833
14b April 2023

20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833
5b May 2023

20,850,832 20,850,832 20,850,832

a7
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5m May 2023
20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833

5s May 2023
20,850,833 20,850,833 20,850,833

Total
250,239,998 250,239,998 285,239,998

ln confirm that the amounts shown above are conect as of the date indicated.
H6ed of Accountentr d.partment of boncflclary Entlty:

/2-n I D.t lfthNamc: SlSnt2,

J

I
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Appendlx Vl: Reportng of Gllmeb Relsvant Expendlturuc

Appendix Vll: Reporting on Disaster Management Expendifure

N/A

N/A

tlg


